
Council Meeting Regular June 10, 2013 
 

The Regular Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Bruce Armstrong at 7:01 
p.m. in the Haysville Municipal Building, 200 West Grand Avenue.   
 
Roll was taken by Recording Secretary Jessica Chilcote: Crum here, Benner here, Kanaga 
here, Kessler here, Rardin here, Konkel here, and Pierce here.  Councilperson Ewert was 
not present.  
 
Councilperson Daniel Benner led everyone in prayer.  
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong led everyone present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Under Presentation and Approval of Minutes, Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented for 
approval the Minutes of May 28, 2013. 
 
Motion by Kanaga- Second by Rardin 
Mr. Mayor, I move that we approve the minutes of May 28th.  
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
There were no Citizens to be Heard.  
 
There were no Approval of Licenses and Bonds.  
 
There were no Introduction of Ordinances and Resolutions.  
 
Under Notices and Communications, Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for Governing Body 
Announcements. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong thanked Public Works, the PRIDE Committee and all of the 
volunteers that helped with the City Wide Cleanup. Mayor Armstrong stated it was 
another successful clean up and took in more than ever.  
 
Councilperson Russ Kessler announced the Fourth of July Celebration schedule.  
 
 Parade lineup    7:30 a.m.  
 Parade     8:30 a.m. 
 Volleyball Tournament  8:00 a.m. 
 Registration for Fishing Derby 9:00 a.m. 
 Fishing Derby    9:45 a.m. 
 Awards Ceremony   10:30 a.m. 
 Registration for Frog Races  11:00 a.m.  
 Frog Races    11:15 a.m. 
 Registration for Raft Races(Pool) 11:45 a.m. 
 Raft Races(Pool)   12:00 p.m. 
 Water Carnival(Pool)   1:00-6:00 p.m. 
 Lineup for Youth Parade  6:45 p.m. 



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 2 
 
 Youth Parade    7:00 p.m. 
 Concert -Jake Gill Band  7:45-9:45 p.m. 
  (Citizen of the Year Award during intermission) 
 Fireworks    9:45 p.m.  
 
Councilperson Russ Kessler also stated the Haysville Playground Passport would be 
going on until August 31. Kessler advised there were still prizes available for 
participants. Kessler stated the program allowed children to go to all the different parks in 
the City. Kessler also stated a form could be printed off of the City’s website or picked up 
at the Haysville Activity Center. Kessler explained each park had a sign with a letter on it 
that corresponds with that park. Kessler stated the form must be filled out along with a 
survey, and the first 50 kids will receive a t-shirt. Kessler advised he would like to see a 
lot of kids at the parks.      
 
Councilperson Steve Crum reminded everyone to sign up for programs at the Haysville 
Community Library. Crum advised there was a reading program, different shows once a 
week, and are taking sign ups for Imagigames. Crum explained Imagigames. Crum 
encouraged children ages five through sixth grade to sign up.  
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a New Business License, Diversicare of Haysville, 
215 N. Lamar.  
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Letter from Cox Communications Re: Switched 
Digital Video Platform.  
 
There was no Old Business.  
 
Under Other Business, Mayor Bruce Armstrong introduced a Consideration of 
Exemption of Municipal Buildings from House Bill 2052.   
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong opened the item up for discussion. Councilperson Russ Kessler 
verified that he understood the letter. Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield stated the Bill 
decriminalized the act of carrying a concealed weapon into public buildings. Kessler 
stated he was against the letter because there was nothing preventing someone to carry a 
gun into City Hall. Kessler advised by sending in this letter, it will prevent authorized 
people to legally carry a concealed weapon. Councilperson Mike Kanaga stated he agreed 
with everything Kessler said. Councilperson Seth Konkel asked if this letter was for all 
City owned properties. Whitfield advised it was for the specific buildings on the letter. 
Konkel asked City Attorney Alison McKinney-Brown if there were any legal 
ramifications for the City. McKinney-Brown stated all buildings are posted for the City, 
that no one may carry in a concealed weapon. McKinney-Brown advised the letter would 
allow the City to maintain that status while they looked at what types of security 
measures it may want to implement or not want to. McKinney-Brown advised the bill 
came up at the last minute, and most cities have not had time to determine what their 
security measures are. McKinney-Brown stated the highest concern was for people 



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 3 
 
carrying concealed weapons into the courtroom and other places where emotions tend to 
run high. McKinney-Brown advised this letter would allow the City to maintain the status 
of no concealed weapons for six months. McKinney-Brown stated the no gun signs are 
still allowed, but as of July 1, if cities take no action, they must take the signs down and 
allow people to carry concealed weapons into all of their public places. Mayor Armstrong 
stated if Council passes this letter, it will stop the issue until January 1, 2014. McKinney-
Brown stated the letter gives the City six months to come up with a security plan. 
Councilperson Steve Crum stated he would be against anyone bringing weapons into the 
Courtroom or Council Room until security measures are taken. Kanaga stated he doesn’t 
think there is any statistical evidence that allowing people that have undergone the 
training and the background checks involved with having a concealed carry permit, 
makes a place any less secure or any more unsafe. Kessler stated he believed that people 
that can legally carry weapons should be able to protect themselves.   
 
Motion by Kessler-Second by Kanaga 
I would make a motion that we do not send this letter to the State.  
Crum nay, Benner nay, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin nay, Konkel nay, Pierce yea. 
Motion declared not carried. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for a motion to send the letter.  
 
Councilperson Seth Konkel asked what the plan was to look at the City’s security issues. 
Konkel also asked if it would be done in-house. Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield advised it 
would be done in-house with help from Sedgwick County. Konkel stated this issue 
seemed to be a little touchy and has divided Council more than anything else since he had 
been on Council. Konkel also stated he would like to see a security plan before the 
January 1 deadline.  
 
Motion by Konkel-Second by Crum 
I will move that we support and submit a letter for exemption of municipal buildings 
from House Bill 2052.  
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga nay, Kessler nay, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce nay. 
Motion declared carried. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Consideration of Bids for City Hall Roof Repair.      
 
Public Works Director Randy Dorner stated several contractors had looked at the roof of 
City Hall over the years. Dorner advised nothing has been done to it since 1999. Dorner 
stated it was a very flat roof. Dorner advised he had received three bids for the repair. 
Dorner stated each of the three contractors have a different process and product they 
would use. Dorner also stated the bid from Wichita Roofing included a 10 year material 
warranty and a 2 year workmanship warranty. Dorner advised it was a flat roof with 
drains on it and does not shed water. Dorner stated it was a very hard roof to keep from 
leaking. Dorner asked for authorization to accept the bid from Wichita Roofing for 
$17,371.80. Councilperson Bob Rardin asked if the repair from Wichita Roofing included 



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 4 
 
a membrane. Dorner stated they would power wash and clean it, install a felt and white 
top seal coat on it. Dorner advised they would be re-sealing the top of the membrane. 
Councilperson Steve Crum asked if any other buildings in the City have had this method 
done to their roofs. Dorner advised he had not, but it is fairly new on the market. Dorner 
stated they tried other things at the Activity Center and the Vickers Building. Dorner 
explained the 2 year workmanship warranty would cover how it was put down on the 
roof, and the 10 year materials warranty would cover if the product failed. Councilperson 
Mike Kanaga asked if the other bids were a different process. Dorner stated yes. Dorner 
advised The Roof Mechanics would clean sweep the roof deck, put on a modified roof, 
apply mechanical attach and flashings. Dorner stated Wray’s Roofing would remove 
existing roofing and haul away debris, put new wet insulation down, mechanically attach 
high density wood fiber, mop on glass base with hot asphalt and put on a tar based top. 
Dorner advised all three companies were completely different. Dorner stated there are 
other things on the market but they do not recommend them for flat roofs. Dorner advised 
the roof can hold a couple inches of water and the drains have become clogged and some 
have broken loose. Councilperson Bob Rardin asked how the warranty’s compared to 
Wichita Roofing. Dorner advised The Roof Mechanics had a 5 year warranty on labor 
and 10 year warranty on product. Dorner stated Wray’s Roofing did not submit a 
warranty with their bid. Councilperson Daniel Benner asked if Wray’s Roofing was the 
only one that would remove the existing roof. Dorner stated The Roof Mechanics would 
remove all existing bubbles. Dorner stated they all basically go over the existing roof and 
add to it.  
 
Motion by Konkel-Second by Kessler 
I move that we approve the City Hall roof repair with Wichita Roofing in the amount of 
$17,371.80 
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Consideration of Digital Radio Upgrades for Police 
Department.  
 
Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield requested a digital radio upgrade. Whitfield advised 
Sedgwick County is in the process of moving to a digital radio system. Whitfield stated in 
order for the City’s radios to continue to be compatible on the county and state system, 
the remaining radios need to be upgraded. Whitfield advised they had gradually been 
upgrading the radios and are down to the last 24 that need to be changed. Whitfield stated 
the radios will be from Mobile Radio Service for $119,439.20. Councilperson Seth 
Konkel asked if the upgrades would allow for the full state template as well. Whitfield 
stated they would be, as well as the national frequencies in case of disasters. 
Councilperson Russ Kessler asked how many other radios had already been upgraded. 
Whitfield stated 39 have already been upgraded.   
 
Motion by Rardin-Second by Konkel 



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 5 
 
Mr. Mayor and Council, if there is no more discussion, I make a motion that we approve 
the radio upgrades from Mobile Radio Service in the amount of $119,439.20. 
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Consideration of Bids for Emergency Lights in 
Unmarked Police Vehicles.   
 
Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield stated this was for the installation of emergency lights in 
two of the unmarked vehicles. Whitfield stated there is no emergency equipment in those 
vehicles. Whitfield advised these vehicles are generally driven by the investigators, and 
they may have to respond to calls and need to be able to go out with emergency 
equipment in order to move through traffic. Whitfield stated they received three bids. 
Whitfield requested approval to authorize the bid from Cop Stuff in Mulvane for 
$4,074.88 
 
Motion by Konkel-Second by Rardin 
I move that we approve the emergency lights through Cop Stuff in the amount of 
$4,078.88. 
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Consideration of No Fishing in Riggs Pond before 
the Fishing Derby.    
 
Motion by Konkel-Second by Kessler 
If there are no questions, I move that we approve no fishing in Riggs Pond from June 27 
through the opening of the fishing derby on July 4.  
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for Department Reports. 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Will Black advised the Haysville Hometown Market would 
open Saturday, June 15 from 8:00 to 11:00 a.m. in the Historic District. Black stated 
Haysville PRIDE would be sponsoring a paper shredding event in the City Hall parking 
lot from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. 
 
City Clerk Janie Cox had nothing to report.     
 
Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield gave curfew times for certain ages. Whitfield stated 
children ages 15 and under needed to be off the streets between 11:00 p.m.- 6:00 a.m., 
Sunday through Thursday, and from 12:00-6:00 a.m. on Friday and Saturday. Whitfield 
advised children ages 16 and 17 needed to be off the streets between 12:00-6:00 a.m., 
Sunday through Thursday, and from 1:00-6:00 a.m. on Friday and Saturday.   



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 6 
 
 
Public Works Director Randy Dorner stated the Household Hazardous Waste Drop-off 
would be Saturday, June 15 from 9:00 a.m.-1:00 p.m. at the Vickers Building. Dorner 
advised Turkle Street between Spring and Dwight Court was currently closed due to 
construction. Dorner stated they would go from Dwight Court to Lamar next and start 
putting a base rock in. Dorner advised they would do it in sections to be as accessible as 
possible. Dorner stated they were hoping for the construction to be completed by July 4. 
Dorner advised the telephone company and gas company are pot holing to get depths on 
their lines on East Grand. Dorner stated the gas lines would be replaced behind the curb 
with new steel pipe. Dorner stated they would also be replacing gas lines in some 
residential neighborhoods as well. Dorner advised the City would follow up and moving 
the water line behind the curb as well. Dorner stated Marty Roads would be retiring after 
26 years and invited Council to a retirement party for him on June 21 at 3:00 p.m. at 
Public Works. Councilperson Russ Kessler asked if bicycle paths were taken into 
consideration on East Grand. Dorner stated there will be a ten foot path that extends to 
Ward Parkway and lighting from Delos to Broadway with the antique lighting. Kessler 
stated he would like it if bicycle paths were considered during any new street 
construction.  
 
Recreation Director Georgie Carter was not present.  
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented Kelly Sullivan, 556 Caleb Re: Reappointment to City 
Parks and Community Forestry Board (2 year term). 
 
Motion by Kessler-Second by Crum 
Mr. Mayor and Council, I recommend we reappoint Kelly Sullivan at 556 Caleb to the 
City Parks and Community Forestry Board for a two year term.  
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
There were no Off Agenda Citizens to be Heard.  
 
There was no Executive Session.  
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented the Bills to be Paid for the First Half of June.   
 
Motion by Kanaga-Second by Konkel 
Mr. Mayor I move that we pay the bills for the first half of June.  
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
There was nothing under the Consent Agenda.  
 
Under Council Items, Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for any Council concerns.  
 



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 7 
 
Councilperson Daniel Benner stated he had a request from a citizen on Saturday. Benner 
showed pictures of potholes on Alice Street. Benner asked if the list for streets needing 
work was done. Public Works Director Randy Dorner stated the list was still being 
generated as they were going over all streets. Dorner stated they would patch the pothole, 
but there was a street problem and drainage problem on Alice as well. Benner stated the 
pothole was four to five inches deep and 6 feet long. Benner advised the citizen stated he 
cannot get into his driveway without going through the pothole. Dorner stated by planing 
it out and putting in a hot mix it will last longer, but will be patched temporarily until the 
City receives the planer. Benner stated the citizen also informed him there was a lot of 
heavy traffic that goes up and down Alice, from trash trucks to buses. Benner stated he 
wasn’t sure if the street was ever made for that kind of traffic.   
 
Councilperson Russ Kessler asked Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield if any progress had been 
made on the no parking signs around the City. Whitfield stated they had all the answers 
they needed, but he needed to discuss what they wanted to do with Public Works Director 
Randy Dorner and put the plan in place. Kessler asked what he had come up with so far. 
Whitfield stated there were no ordinances that stated they had to have no parking signs on 
major roads. Whitfield stated they may remove the current no parking signs and see if 
any problems arise. Whitfield stated if it became a problem, they would put new signs up 
where the problem area is. Kessler stated he thought there was no parking on any four 
lane street. Whitfield stated that was correct.   
 
Councilperson Seth Konkel stated he had several citizens contact him after the last 
meeting for the fireworks times. Konkel stated their concern was having a weekend time 
after 10:00 p.m. to shoot fireworks. Konkel asked if Council had any thoughts to change 
times on weekends. There were none.   
 
Councilperson Keith Pierce stated there were issues on Fager Drive. Pierce asked Public 
Works Director Randy Dorner if the speed limit sign could be replaced, as it was very old 
and weathered. Pierce advised he had received a petition signed by the neighbors around 
Fager Drive. Pierce stated the petition asked Council to find a way to slow traffic on 
Fager for the safety of the children. Pierce passed out aerial photographs of the area. 
Pierce stated their main concern was around the curve. Pierce advised the neighborhood 
was requesting more signage being put up including “Caution-Children at Play”. Pierce 
stated the citizens are well aware of the lack of enforcement of the signs, but would like 
the signs put up anyway. Pierce advised he had prices some of the signs on the internet 
and found some for as low as $32.00 with a 10 year warranty. Pierce stated other 
neighborhoods may request these signs as well, but for the sake of safety it may need 
looked at. Pierce stated some neighborhoods may qualify and some may not. Pierce 
advised it needs to be looked at on a case by case basis. Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked if 
there were any regulations the City needed to go by for the signs. City Attorney Alison 
McKinney-Brown stated the regulations for play street signs are less than for speed limit 
signs. Mayor Armstrong asked if Council could place the signs were they see fit. 
McKinney-Brown stated yes. Pierce stated the signs may not have any effect but would 
be content to have them anyway. Councilperson Steve Crum stated the picture did not 



Regular Council Meeting 

June 10, 2013 

Page 8 
 
show the visibility issues that the street has. Councilperson Bob Rardin asked if this is the 
same area there was a visibility problem with a vehicle parked on the curve. Pierce stated 
yes. Councilperson Daniel Benner stated he would rather err on the side of caution rather 
than abide by the letter of the law in a case like this. Benner stated in a case like this, he 
would like to put signs up. Mayor Armstrong asked Council what they would like to do. 
Pierce stated he would like Public Works Director Randy Dorner and Chief of Police Jeff 
Whitfield to look at the available signs and use their best judgment to settle on a size that 
will be most effective. Pierce asked Dorner and Whitfield to come back and give Council 
a choice of signs to pick from. Mayor Armstrong stated it could come back next meeting. 
Pierce asked about using an existing round pole for the sign. Dorner stated those sign 
poles should have been taken down since they don’t break away if someone hits it. Pierce 
asked to have total costs come back to include the poles. Councilperson Seth Konkel 
echoed the same concerns and would like to see a process put in place so that the issue 
can be handled by staff. Konkel stated this could snow ball as well and would like to see 
a process or plan for fair reviews on neighborhoods that may want these signs as well.  
 
Mayor Bruce Armstrong introduced Council Action Request Updates. 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Will Black stated the Council Action Request at 214 Sunset 
has had the grass planted on June 4. Black advised the high grass/weed lots in Timberlane 
North have been mowed or sent letters. Black stated a Council Action Request from 
Councilperson Daniel Benner had also been received over the weekend for 229 Alice that 
had been discussed earlier.   
    
Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented for approval Adjournment. 
 
Motion by Pierce-Second by Konkel 
Mr. Mayor and Council, and staff, I move that we adjourn tonight’s meeting.    
Crum yea, Benner yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
The Regular Council Meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________  
Janie Cox, City Clerk 


